
SOUTHERN PINES APPEARANCE COMMISSION MINUTES 
Regular Meeting 

November 22, 2016 
 
 
Present: Birtha Shaw, Teresa Lenahan, Jeff Kelly, and Ellen Slusher 

 
Staff Present: Debra Fisher, Jack Taylor, and Chris Kennedy 
 
Birtha Shaw asked for any edits or comments on the minutes as submitted and entertained a motion for 
approval.  Ellen Slusher made a motion, seconded by Jeff Kelly, to approve the minutes from October 24, 
2016 Southern Pines Appearance Commission meeting. 
 
Jack Taylor stated that the installation of the Town’s Christmas decorations is on schedule.  Mr. Taylor 
also stated that the Town is replacing a tree that was damaged in the storm, a foster holly, and we are 
replacing it with a green leaf holly.  Chris Kennedy stated that once all of the Christmas trees are placed 
the plan is to go around and locate where all the trees and wreaths are installed, and then create a GIS 
layer to document where they are located for use in future years. 
 
Landscape/Trees/Planters 
 
Tree Concerns/Update/Pots:  Teresa Lenahan stated that the Appearance Commission tree walk was 
completed, and at least three-quarters (3/4) of our trees will need to be removed over the next two to 
five years.  Teresa Lenahan commented that Penelope Ham took the minutes and pictures during the tree 
walk and should have a list available at the next Appearance Commission meeting.  Teresa Lenahan stated 
that Jeff Grey was going to purchase a blue sapphire cedar for each pot at the train station.  Teresa 
Lenahan asked Chris Kennedy if he was going to work with the Southern Pines Business Association prior 
to the spring season in an effort of creating consistency for planting pots and hanging baskets.  Chris 
Kennedy commented that he intends to establish a relationship with the Southern Pines Business 
Association and the Appearance Commission towards a coordinated efforts with respect to plant selection 
and colors, and if the interest is mutual. 
 
General Appearance 
 
Adopt-A-Street:  Birtha Shaw stated that she has a couple of interested parties for the Adopt-a-Street 
program. Birtha Shaw commented that she is going through the list of existing Adopt-a Street groups to 
make sure that she has correct contact information.  Ms. Shaw will have the list available at the next 
Appearance Commission meeting. 
 
Building and Property Improvements:  Ellen Slusher stated that the business “9th of September” located 
on NE Broad Street needs to repaint their sign.  Teresa Lenahan stated she will speak with the business 
owner about painting the sign.  Ellen Slusher also stated that the dance studio above the ice cream parlor 
on NW Broad Street likely needs to replace their windows.  Birtha Shaw stated that she would get a letter 
to the property owner.  Chris Kennedy stated that the property owners will need to contact the Historic 
District Commission before replacing any windows.  Birtha Shaw commented that property located on S. 
Gaines St. needs to be cleaned up but the property owner has passed away, and she doesn’t know who 
to contact to have the property cleaned up.  Chris Kennedy stated the property has likely passed to the 



estate and the Town can have a notice sent to the estate as the property owner asking for the property 
to be cleaned up. 
 
Town Lighting Project:  Birtha Shaw stated that Sean McCormick was not here and asked if anyone had 
information about the town lighting project.  Chris Kennedy stated that he spoke with Sean McCormick 
about the town lighting project, and that Mr. McCormick is working on scheduling a demonstration for 
the Appearance Commission.  Chris Kennedy stated one issue with tree selection relative to which trees 
are lighted, is the trees are not set up symmetrically in the downtown area so it will be difficult to decide 
which trees to have lights and which will not.  The demonstration will include two trees that are across 
from the train station and may also include a demonstration of lighting on the Southern Pines sign located 
at the train station. 
   
New Business 
 
2 – 5 – 10 Year Plan Committee:  Jeff Kelly stated that he received great suggestions from everyone on 
the Appearance Commission Master Plan.  Mr. Kelly transcribed and organized the comments and 
suggestions.  Mr. Kelly stated that he is not sure how the board wants to proceed but he would prefer to 
have more members present before making any decisions.  Chris Kennedy stated that it would be helpful 
if the Appearance Commission created a Long Range Plan document comprised of the Appearance 
Commission’s policies and implementation plans for the 2-5-10 year plan.  Chris Kennedy stated that he 
created a sample table of contents to help create a framework and he presented the sample to the board.  
Discussion ensued on creating a policy for the plan.  Birtha Shaw stated that for the next meeting in 
January the board should begin writing our mission, vision, goals, and bring them to the table.  Chris 
Kennedy stated that an approach for adoption of the policy would be to take it to the Town Council Work 
Session and submit the policy as a draft document.  This draft will define the role of the Appearance 
Commission and outline the policies identified by the board.  Acquiring Town Council consent will allow 
for the policies to be more transparent and can assist in the budget process with the Town Council. 
 
Public Relations 
 
Updates:  No new updates. 
 
Potential New Members Update:  Birtha Shaw stated that the Appearance Commission will invite 
potential new members that have already submitted their applications to the January meeting.  Birtha 
Shaw commented that she would like everyone to prepare and bring with them to the January meeting 
information related to the goals and accomplishments of the Southern Pines Appearance Commission.  
The board will then deliver an unified briefing to be published in The Pilot newspaper to better inform the 
general public about the Appearance Commission and so that our citizens know what we do and who we 
are.   
 
Adjournment; Teresa Lenahan motioned and Ellen Slusher seconded. 
 
The next meeting will be at 1:00pm on January 24, 2017 
 
Submitted by: 
Debra Fisher 
Town of Southern Pines 


